
 

MEETING MINUTES 

Subject: Special Committee to Study and Make Recommendations 
Regarding Truck Traffic & Freight Movements 
Along SR 41, SR 48 & SR 7 

Date:  Wednesday, September 13, 2017 
6:00pm 

Location: Hockessin Fire Hall 
1225 Old Lancaster Pike 
Hockessin, Delaware 19707 

Attendees: Committee Members 
Tigist Zegeye, Chair – Executive Director of WILMAPCO 
Mike Begatto – Diamond State Port Corporation Board of Directors 
Mike Censurato – Route 7 Representative 
Jennifer Cohan – Secretary of DelDOT 
Nick Ferrara – Route 48 Representative 
Gale Hamilton – Route 48 Representative 
Michael Lewandowski – Route 7 Representative 
Mark Luszcz – Chief Traffic Engineer DelDOT 
MaryAnn Summers – Route 41 Representative 
Bill Taylor – Route 41 Representative 

Other Attendees 
Andrew Bing, Facilitator – Kramer & Associates 
Jim Burnett, Technical Staff Support – RK&K 
General public, see attached sign-in sheets 

Not present: Matthew Cox – Delaware State Police Truck Enforcement Unit 

 

MEETING AGENDA 

Welcome & Introductions 

Tigist Zegeye welcomed participants to the meeting. All Committee members introduced themselves, 
including their affiliation with the Committee. 

August 9, 2017 Meeting Minutes 

Draft meeting minutes were emailed to Committee members on August 24, 2017. Tigist asked for any 
comments or corrections to the August 9, 2017 Meeting Minutes. There were no noted comments or 
corrections. 



Meeting Minutes 
Special Committee Regarding Trucks on SR 41, SR 48 & SR 7 
Wednesday, September 13, 2017 

 

Page 2 of 8 
 

Mike Begatto made a motion to approve the meeting minutes as written. Michael Lewandowski seconded 
the motion: 

• Ayes: Tigist Zegeye, Mike Begatto, Nick Ferrara, Gale Hamilton, Bill Taylor, Michael Lewandowski, 
Mike Censurato, Mark Luszcz, and Secretary Jennifer Cohan 

• Nays: None 

• Abstentions: None 

• Not present: Matthew Cox, MaryAnn Summers 

Motion Carries. Final Meeting Minutes for Meeting #2 will be posted on the WILMAPCO website. 

Follow-up Items from August 9, 2017 Meeting 

Tigist and the project team received over 40 requests for follow-up information after Meeting #2. At the 
request of the Committee, Tigist provided all questions and responses to all Special Committee members 
via email. The responses are also included in the project notebooks and will be posted on the WILMAPCO 
website, along with other SR 10 materials, at www.wilmapco.org/sr10. 

Tigist noted that responding to questions required a large amount of time and effort from the entire 
project team and hopes that they have responded to the Committee members’ satisfaction. Tigist 
encouraged the Committee to continue asking questions to meet the Committee’s needs, but asked that 
the members limit questions and requests to those directly from the Committee members, and only those 
that are essential to complete the task at-hand. This should allow the project team to continue to respond 
in a timely manner. 

Gale Hamilton noted that the answers provided by the project team were thorough and clear and thanked 
everyone involved in providing responses. 

Mike Censurato asked if this portion of the meeting was an appropriate time to ask specifics about the 
questions submitted to date. Tigist encouraged Mike to follow-up with her if his questions were not 
answered over the course of the meeting so that the Committee could accomplish everything on the 
agenda. 

Tigist turned the meeting over to Andrew Bing, the Special Committee Facilitator. Andrew reminded 
everyone in attendance that the Special Committee meetings are designed for the benefit of the 
Committee members. The meeting is open to the public, but the meeting itself is not participatory for 
members of the public. There will be a time set aside at the end of each meeting for public comment. 

Presentation on Comprehensive Signage Inventory 

Andrew introduced Jim Burnett to discuss the comprehensive sign inventory completed at the request of 
the Committee. Andrew reminded everyone that during Meeting #2, the Committee unanimously 
recommended DelDOT perform a sign inventory. Andrew also noted that the task did not include any 
analysis of the signs identified during the inventory because the Committee will make recommendations 
using the information obtained. 

http://www.wilmapco.org/sr10


Meeting Minutes 
Special Committee Regarding Trucks on SR 41, SR 48 & SR 7 
Wednesday, September 13, 2017 

 

Page 3 of 8 
 

Jim presented the comprehensive sign inventory along SR 7 between the Pennsylvania state line and 
SR 2, along SR 41 between the Pennsylvania state line and SR 2, and along SR 48 between the SR 41/SR 48 
split and SR 141. Jim’s team used GPS-enabled iPads to inventory 1,135 signs along the three corridors, 
documenting the location, sign type, and a photo of each. Jim’s team used the results to develop graphics 
for three sign types: route sign assemblies, speed limit signs, and truck/weight restriction signs. Jim’s team 
also identified 51 damaged or obscured signs. The interactive GIS database with each sign type, photo, 
and location will be available on the project website. 

MaryAnn Summers asked where the weight limit restriction sign on SR 41 is located. Jim responded that 
the sign is along SR 41 northbound, north/northwest of Kirkwood Highway. From the GIS database, the 
sign is specifically located north of Washington Avenue and south of Milltown Road. 

Gale elaborated on the many speed signs along SR 48, including both the regulatory Speed Limit signs 
(black text on white signs) and the Advisory Speed plaques that supplement warning signs for hills, 
intersections, and curves (black text on yellow signs). 

Mike C. clarified that the image Jim showed during his presentation with a 5,000-lbs weight restriction 
was related to SR 7, not SR 41 as originally stated. The photo in question was of a sign that faces SR 7 
traffic that is turning onto Griffin Drive. The weight restriction applies to travel on Griffin Drive, not on 
SR 7. Jim elaborated to the Committee that the rule of thumb used in completing the sign inventory was 
“if you can see the face of the sign as you drive along SR 7, SR 41, or SR 48, it is included in the inventory.” 
Based on the rule of thumb, there are some signs included that apply to side streets, including side street 
weight and axle restrictions, street name signs, and Keep Right signs at entrances to neighborhoods. 

Nick Ferrara asked how many engine compression signs there are on all three corridors. Michael 
Lewandowski counted 13 engine compression signs from the sign inventory truck/weight restriction map. 

MaryAnn asked to re-address her previous question regarding the designation of the road between the 
Pennsylvania state line and the SR 41/SR 48 split, which has the route designation SR 41 and the road 
name Lancaster Pike. MaryAnn is concerned that, for people who do not know the area, if SR 48 ends at 
the split, then it is not logical to call the road Lancaster Pike. Jim reiterated that roads often change names 
multiple times along a given state numbered route. For example, if you look in DelDOT’s road inventory, 
many state numbered routes change names at least once if not multiple times. The route designation for 
this segment is SR 41. Jim noted that an “End 48” sign is missing and an existing “West 48” sign is incorrect 
at the SR 41/SR48 split. 

Presentations from Corridor Representatives 

Prior to the meeting, corridor representatives were asked to identify the top five issues for each of their 
respective corridors and to send the list to Tigist. Andrew reminded Committee members that the purpose 
of the exercise was to raise the issues first, not to try to identify solutions at this time. Hard copies of the 
issues submitted to the project team are included in the project notebooks for reference. 

Andrew invited the corridor representatives to come up to the podium or to present from the table, 
whichever was more comfortable. Andrew encouraged all members of the Committee to listen carefully 
to each other, and especially for corridor representatives to pay close attention to corridors other than 



Meeting Minutes 
Special Committee Regarding Trucks on SR 41, SR 48 & SR 7 
Wednesday, September 13, 2017 

 

Page 4 of 8 
 

their own, to prepare for brainstorming activities to follow. Presentations followed in numerical order: 
SR 7, SR 41, and SR 48. 

Mike C. spoke to the issues identified by himself and Michael L. for the SR 7 corridor, providing specific 
examples related to high noise levels, speeding, intersection performance, and road safety. Michael L. 
elaborated on concerns about truck convoys using both lanes where SR 7 is a four-lane road. 

Bill Taylor presented the SR 41 top five issues. Bill elaborated on the growth in the number of trucks over 
time, difference in distances using SR 41 and/or SR 48, noise, fumes, and vibrations common on all 
corridors, speed of trucks, proximity of residents to the highway, perceived lack of police enforcement, 
safety and quality of life, tourist venues, and speed limit signs at Cooke Elementary School. 

Gale provided specific details and examples of the five issues identified by the SR 48 representatives in 
the categories of dangerous intersections, entrances and exits; speed; congestion; sudden hills, curves, 
and blind spots; and, noise and vibration. 

Following the presentations from the corridor representatives, Andrew asked the Committee to reflect 
and comment on what they heard from each other, but not to expand on their own corridor (for the 
corridor representatives). 

MaryAnn noted that during the time she’s been working on the problem on SR 41, she’s communicated 
with Nicole Majeski asking for noise testing, fume testing, and vibration testing. MaryAnn stated she has 
received four letters stating that those tests cannot and will not be done. MaryAnn noted that 
representatives from all three corridors brought up the same problems. She would like to revisit the issue 
and find out why the testing cannot be done. Andrew encouraged MaryAnn to bring those thoughts to 
the brainstorming session and asked the Committee to again reflect on anything that was surprising or 
interesting from the presentations. 

Gale noted that suffering is not a competitive sport and that residents on all three roads are suffering and 
need to be heard. Gale provided a metaphor of a three-headed dog barking at itself, even though there is 
only one body. Gale reminded everyone that the purpose of the Committee is to 1) reduce truck traffic, 
and 2) improve the quality of life. 

Mike C. noted that although corridor representatives each pointed to specific examples and anecdotes of 
safety concerns, the presentation at the last meeting captured all crashes and provided an evaluation of 
safety that was based on crash rates over time. Mike would like the safety data to be the basis for making 
decisions. Mike noted that the anecdotal examples are less useful compared to the long-term statistics 
that measure what is happening over time. 

Bill commented that on SR 7 near the Christiana Mall/SR 1/I-95, there are six lanes compared to two lanes 
where SR 7 and SR 4 split. Bill also noted that the Committee cannot work in a vacuum, and must have 
cooperation from Pennsylvania, the Port of Wilmington, and the companies sending trucks their way. Bill 
observed that the Committee has not heard from other players who will be critical in making the 
Committee’s recommendations viable over five years. Bill would like to avoid situations where the number 
of lanes on the highway is reduced from six to two. 



Meeting Minutes 
Special Committee Regarding Trucks on SR 41, SR 48 & SR 7 
Wednesday, September 13, 2017 

 

Page 5 of 8 
 

Mike C. responded to Bill that before thinking about widening SR 7 to six lanes, the Committee should 
consider four lanes for the other two corridors. 

Andrew thanked the corridor representatives for presenting and noted the commonalities heard from all 
corridors both during the presentations and the discussion that followed. 

Breakout Session, Report-outs, and Discussion 

The Special Committee was separated into two groups (a “blue” group and a “green” group) for a breakout 
session. Andrew tasked each group to spend approximately 20 minutes discussing ideas and/or 
approaches to address the identified issues. Andrew noted that he specifically did not use the term 
“solutions” because the Committee is in the initial stages of the process to develop recommendations. In 
the short breakout session, groups were not expected to come up with everything necessary to solve 
problems, but rather to discuss and write down initial ideas. 

Blank matrices were provided for each Committee member to make notes about approaches to solving 
issues in the four broad categories of safety, quality of life, enforcement/regulatory, and engineering/ 
infrastructure. Andrew asked that each breakout group 1) identify a member to report back to the rest of 
the Committee, and 2) develop at least two approaches or ideas to address the four broad categories. 

At the end of the breakout session, Bill provided the report-out for the “blue” brainstorming group. The 
blue group discussed speeding as a safety concern. There are red-light cameras in Delaware, but no speed 
enforcement cameras. One idea was to get legislation passed to allow speed enforcement cameras. For 
quality of life, the blue group focused on enforcement of jake-braking and air quality. There was debate 
among the blue group about enhanced law enforcement efforts on the corridors, what has been done 
and how effective the efforts have been. The blue group suggested that the Committee find out best 
practices in Pennsylvania. As a member of the blue group, Tigist noted that she will be coordinating with 
the Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC) and that dialogue is possible. The blue group 
suggested International Fuel Tax Agreement (IFTA) stickers, virtual weigh stations, and electric gantries as 
ideas for the enforcement/regulatory category. The blue group noted that in many cases the technology 
exists, but the Committee must determine where it can be used most effectively. Finally, in terms of 
engineering/infrastructure, the blue group suggested a Road Safety Audit, a bypass, and changes to tolls 
on the Pennsylvania turnpike. 

MaryAnn provided the report-out for the “green” brainstorming group. The green group also focused on 
speeding. One idea was to lower the speed limit. Another approach was more enforcement of the existing 
speed limits. The green group also talked about intersection safety design and suggested DelDOT look at 
intersections to see where there are blind spots and capacity issues. In terms of quality of life, the green 
group suggested stricter enforcement and inspections of vehicle equipment. The green group also 
suggested state sponsored homeowner noise reduction inspections. While discussing enforcement/ 
regulatory issues, the green group discussed the placement of jake-brake prohibition signs. The green 
group suggested that the signs be relocated upstream of traffic signals. The green group also suggested 
DelDOT install signs prohibiting vehicles longer than 60-feet to let truck drivers know about the law in 
Delaware before they are on Delaware roads. The green group also discussed glow-in-the-dark guardrails. 



Meeting Minutes 
Special Committee Regarding Trucks on SR 41, SR 48 & SR 7 
Wednesday, September 13, 2017 

 

Page 6 of 8 
 

Following the report-out from each group, Andrew opened the floor for group discussion about anything 
the Committee members heard from the other brainstorming group, items they were starting to talk 
about in their own small groups, other items on the agenda, or anything that would be helpful for future 
Committee meetings. 

Mike B. noted that there was a lot of discussion about the speed limit in school zones and particularly that 
the speed limit near Cooke Elementary School is different than other school zones. Mike asked why there 
are different speed zones. Mark responded that per state law, the school speed limits are 20 mph unless 
posted otherwise. State code also includes standard speed limits by road type, unless posted otherwise. 
Mark noted that some school zones include flashing lights, some are only applicable when children are 
present, and some are set based on whether there are students who walk to school or if all children take 
a bus or are dropped off. Mark also noted that in some cases, school speed limits were determined 
decades ago and may not be the same determination that would be made today if they were reevaluated. 
Mark noted that school zone speed limits can be looked at again and based on the volume, type of road, 
and if there are students who walk to school or not, the suggested school zone speed limits may be 
different than what was decided in the past. 

Bill identified two ideas that did not come out of either breakout group, 1) congestion tolls, and 2) traffic 
calming. Bill defined congestion tolls to include tolls used to divert traffic elsewhere. Bill also suggested 
traffic calming devices be considered, specifically, concrete barriers that force traffic to slow down to 
safely navigate side-to-side movements. Bill suggested that these items be considered at the next meeting 
and specifically how they apply to trucks. 

Nick turned the Committee’s attention to the 60-foot length restriction. Nick observed that most new 
trailers are 53-feet long and that if a tractor has a sleeper cab on it, then the total vehicle length is likely 
to exceed the 60-foot limit. Nick suggested that the law is obsolete and that if Delaware enforced the 
60-foot length restriction, the number of trucks in Delaware would be reduced by 90%. Nick noted that 
the State Police representative was not present and that DelDOT left. (Although Secretary Cohan had to 
leave the meeting early, Mark Luszcz from DelDOT was present for the entire meeting). 

Gale suggested that the Committee implement special use licenses for class 8 trucks other than local 
deliveries to use the three routes. She also suggested adding class 6 and class 7 vehicles to that 
consideration. 

Andrew thanked the Committee members for the discussion and noted that this is just the beginning of 
the Committee’s discussion and that more opportunities will follow. 

Andrew asked Mark to address a question earlier in the evening from Mike C. regarding level of service 
(LOS) calculations. Mark informed the Committee that there are multiple methods to evaluate 
intersection operations. Most methods result in a letter grade, similar to grades in school, where A is the 
best and F is failing. The critical summation method that was used to provide LOS results that are included 
in the project notebooks is the simplest method. More complicated methods that estimate delay per 
vehicle and queue lengths are also available. Mark noted that at signalized intersections, typically delay 
and queue length are considered. Mike C. indicated that the LOS results provided to date seemed 
insufficient because they were based on volume only. Mark reassured Mike C. and the Committee that 
the LOS results to date also account for the number of lanes at each intersection. 



Meeting Minutes 
Special Committee Regarding Trucks on SR 41, SR 48 & SR 7 
Wednesday, September 13, 2017 

 

Page 7 of 8 
 

Future Meetings 

Tigist thanked the Committee members for attending and noted that the next meeting is scheduled for 
October 11, 2017. Due to location constraints, the next meeting will be held at Cooke Elementary School. 
Note:  The meeting has since been rescheduled to Wednesday October 4, 2017 at 6:00pm. 

Public Comment 

Andrew concluded the formal meeting and opened up the floor for public comment. 

1. Joanne Abruzzese expressed concerns that affect residents at the Coffee Run condominium 
homes. Joanne noted that during her professional career, she negotiated a variety of solutions for 
various issues, and knows that the Committee has a very tough job. Joanne moved to Coffee Run 
from New York City and stated that she has become an overly cautious driver to deal with sharp 
curves, significant hilliness of the area, sudden side streets, speed limits that seem to change 
frequently, and heavy tractor-trailer use. She noted that she became even more cautious and 
stopped driving whenever possible after the signs directing traffic onto SR 48 were installed. 
Joanne stated that she also has a passion for walking, but that she has decided to stay in her 
neighborhood because she is concerned about crossing the street at SR 48 and Loveville Road, 
even though there is a traffic signal and crosswalk. Joanne observed that things improved when 
the signs came down. Joanne expressed concern that things will be worse if the signs are re-
installed. 

2. Ann Tucker has been a resident on SR 48 for several years and noted that traffic congestion, and 
particularly truck traffic, has increased. Anne described several concerns including trucks speeding 
through intersections, hills and curves where vision is limited, changes in speed limit, and 
locations where the number of lanes changes (truck climbing lanes). Anne noted that there have 
been some fatalities and she has increasingly witnessed roadkill. Anne expressed concern that it 
is only a matter of time before someone trying to avoid hitting a deer results in an injury or fatality. 

3. Marilynn D’Amico lives on McKennans Church Road and, similar to the previous meeting, 
requested that this road also be considered. Marilynn requested that signage for SR 41 to SR 7 be 
coordinated with PennDOT. She suggested that a larger sign is necessary. Marilynn noted that she 
has observed truck traffic from Millcreek Road, Walmart trucks, and car carriers using McKennans 
Church Road. Marilynn also suggested cameras to identify speeders, similar to what is done in 
Europe. She would like to know why Delaware can’t have a system where cameras are used to 
take a picture of speeders and a ticket is sent by mail. 

4. Carole Crowe is a resident of Limerick off SR 48 and noted that the Committee has come up with 
wonderful ideas. Carole noted that traffic increased on SR 48 over the last year, including more 
trucks, due to the new CSC building on SR 48. She expressed concern over disregard for posted 
speed limits. Carole also noted that it is difficult to make a left-turn out of her neighborhood at 
times. 

5. Jonathan Free stated that the Committee’s report to the legislature should include a long-term 
plan. He noted that the issues are not going to go away and not going to be fixed by the 
Committee’s report within a very short time frame. Jonathan noted that DelDOT has been 
spending a lot of money in Sussex County and in Middletown related to truck issues, creating a 
bypass. He suggested that the Committee should have a long-term plan so that the legislature can 
commit money. 



Meeting Minutes 
Special Committee Regarding Trucks on SR 41, SR 48 & SR 7 
Wednesday, September 13, 2017 

 

Page 8 of 8 
 

Following the public comments, Andrew thanked everyone for attending and closed the meeting. 

NEXT MEETING 

Special Committee Meetings will be held on the second Wednesday of each month starting at 6:00pm for 
the duration of the project. 

During Special Committee Meeting #3, Tigist noted the next meeting will be held on Wednesday, October 
11, 2017 at 6:00pm at Cooke Elementary School, 2025 Graves Road, Hockessin, DE 19707. 

Please note that after the meeting, the date for the next meeting was changed to Wednesday, October 
4, 2017 at 6:00pm at Cooke Elementary School, 2025 Graves Road, Hockessin, DE 19707. 

If you have any additions, corrections or comments regarding these minutes please contact Tigist Zegeye 
at tzegeye@wilmapco.org. 

Attachments: Committee Member Sign-in Sheet 
  General Sign-in Sheet 
  Public Comment Speaker Sign-up Sheet 
  Written comments from Charlie Weymouth 

cc:  Attendees 

mailto:tzegeye@wilmapco.org





















	2017.09.13 Meeting Minutes - SR10 - SpecCommMtg3_rev3
	September 13 2017 Sign-in Sheet - Committee Members
	September 13 Sign-in Sheet - General Public_Redacted
	September 13 Sign-in Sheet - Speakers
	Written Comments from Charlie Weymouth

